
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
                           

MEETING AGENDA 

PLAN COMMISSION 
Wednesday, October 10, 2018 

7:30 P.M. 
MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL  

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
4. MINUTES - Minutes of September 25, 2018 

 
5. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

a) Case A-34-2018 – 336 E. Ogden Ave. - Bill Jacobs Group (Land Rover) – Major 
Adjustment to previously approved exterior appearance and site plan (Case A-29-2017, 
02.06.18) to renovate the existing building and site plan at 336 E. Ogden Ave. to include 
a Jaguar dealership in the B-3 General Business District.   

 SIGN PERMIT REVIEW – Case A-43-2018 (concurrent with above exterior 
appearance and site plan application) – Eight (8) Signs Proposed, Plan 
Commission recommendations to be forwarded to the Zoning Board of Appeals 
(ZBA, Case V-07-18) 

 
6. SIGN PERMIT REVIEW 

a) Case A-46-2018 – 16 E. 1st Street – Mucci Di Firenze – 1 Wall Sign  
b) Case A-39-2018 – 550 W. Ogden Ave. – Hinsdale Ortho – 1 Illuminated Wall Sign and 

Ground Sign reface  
 

7.  EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLAN REVIEW 
a)  Case A-40-2018 – 550 W. Ogden Ave. – Hinsdale Ortho – Exterior Appearance and Site 

Plan Review for Interior Parking Lot Landscape Plan (retroactive request), Exterior 
Parking Lot Landscape Plan and Parking Lot Lighting Plan. 

        
8.  PUBLIC HEARING - All those wishing to provide public testimony must be sworn in 

and after the applicant makes their presentation will be recognized by the Chair to 
speak. 
a) Case A-24-2018 – Village of Hinsdale – Zoning Code Text Amendment to Section 6-

111(H) Exceptions and Explanatory Notes for the O-2 Limited Office District *continued 
from July 11 PC meeting* 

 
9.  SCHEDULE OF PUBLIC HEARING - No discussion will take place except to determine 

a time and date of hearing. (note: the next PC meeting is on November 14, 2018) 
a) Case A-45-2018 – Village of Hinsdale – Zoning Code Text Amendment to Section 9-

106(J)(7) to prohibit internally illuminated signage in the B-2 Central Business District. 
           

     10.  ADJOURNMENT 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Individuals with 
disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are 
requested to contact Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator at 630.789-7014 or by TDD at 789-7022 promptly to allow the 
Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.  Web Site:  www.villageofhinsdale.org  

http://www.villageofhinsdale.org/


 

MINUTES 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

PLAN COMMISSION 

September 25, 2018 

MEMORIAL HALL 

7:30 P.M. 

 
Chairman Cashman called the special meeting to order at 7:30 p.m., Wednesday, September 25, 2018, in 
Memorial Hall, the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois.   
 
PRESENT: Steve Cashman, Gerald Jablonski, Anna Fiascone, Julie Crnovich, Scott Peterson, and 

Jim Krillenberger,  
ABSENT: Debra Braselton, Mark Willobee and Troy Unell 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Chan Yu, Village Planner  

Applicant for cases: A-29-2018, A-35-2018, A-36-2018, A-38-2018, A-34-2018 and 
A-43-2018 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Findings and Recommendations 
Case A-21-2018 – 5 W. Second Street (basement), Prevail Jujitsu Academy (Martial Arts Studio) – Special 
Use Permit in the B-2 Central Business District (not on the first floor).  The PC, with no comments or 
questions, unanimously approved (6 Ayes, 3 Absent) the motion as submitted.   
 
Sign Permit Review - Case A-29-2018     100 Chestnut Street, Ivy Rehab, 1 illuminated wall sign.   
 
The applicant described the proposed sign design.  Due to the roof line of the building, the sign letters will 
need to be mounted on a white backer panel.  The individual letters will light up, not the backer panel.   
 
Commissioner Crnovich requested a rendering of the proposed sign with the other tenant signs on the 
building to help compare letter sizes of all of the signs.  Discussion of letter sizes of proposed sign and other 
tenant signs followed.  The applicant stated he could shorten the 2 letters that extended upward and 
downward from the other sign letters and scale down the white background from 44” to 41” resulting in 
more consistency with the other signs posted on the building.   
 
Commissioner Crnovich also inquired about using white for the background.  The applicant stated the white 
background is part of a national logo.   
 
The PC with no further questions or concerns, unanimously approved (6 Ayes, 3 Absent) the sign permit 
incorporating the above discussed changes.   
 
Sign Permit Review - Case A-35-2018     907 N. Elm St. – Rogers Behavioral Health – 1 wall sign. 
 
The applicant described the proposed sign as flat, 3/8” stud mounted sign similar in style & size to other 
buildings in the complex.  
 
The PC with no questions or concerns, unanimously approved (6 Ayes, 3 Absent) the sign permit as 
submitted.   
 

Approved 
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Sign Permit Review - Case A-36-2018 36 South Washington St.- Compass – 1 Awning Sign.   
 
The applicant described the proposed sign as re-submittal for an existing awning sign.   
 
The PC with no questions or concerns, unanimously approved (6 Ayes, 3 Absent) the sign permit as 
submitted.   
 
Sign Permit Review - Case A-38-2018 911 N Elm St. – 1 Multi-Tenant Illuminated Ground Sign 
 
The applicant distributed materials the proposed sign would be made of & photos of existing signs made of 
similar material.  A member asked why this material was selected & applicant described the ability of the 
material to out-live brick, resist algae growth, be more cost effective than brick, and weather well.   
 
The PC expressed resistance toward using the fake brick to construct the base of the sign citing concerns that 
no other sign in town with the exception of one was made of similar material.  The PC acknowledged the 
dimensions of the sign is similar to surrounding signs, it had an appealing night-time appearance, & the 
proposed sign was an improvement to the sign currently in place.   
 
Some discussion followed about the illuminated tenant slots on the sign is considered as advertising. The 
section of the code addressing this concern was shared.  The applicant was given a choice of continuing the 
case and returning to the PC with a proposal containing a sign made of different material or the PC taking a 
vote on the current, proposed sign presented tonight.   
 
A motion was unanimously approved (6 Ayes, 3 Absent) to recommend a revised proposal for a sign made 
of masonry with cast stone, keeping the interior illuminated address, and altering the tenant panels to keep 
the CBRE name on the panel but eliminate Colony Capital.   
 
Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Review  - Case A-34-2018 – 336 E. Ogden Ave – Bill Jacobs Group 
(Land Rover) – Major Adjustment to previously approved exterior appearance and site plan (Case A- 
29-2017, 02.06.18) to renovate the existing building and site plan at 336 E. Ogden Ave. to include a 
Jaguar dealership in the B-3 General Business District.  
 
The applicant presented an overview of the site plan.  With the addition of the Jaguar dealership, a larger 
showroom was required and therefore an addition was made to the northwest corner of the building.  The 
building was moved back approximately 15 feet from Ogden Avenue but increased in width from the 
original plan.  The new building would have a flat front and is decreased square footage from the original 
proposal.  Neighborhood discussions involved overhead doors. The number of overhead doors is 
significantly decreased from the original plan and there will be less traffic at the rear of the building due to a 
proposed drive aisle.   
 
Chairman Cashman stated resident concerns included more car deliveries & more service visits with the 
second brand added.  The applicant responded by explaining the service bays increased from 19 service bays 
on the original plan to 20 bays on the proposed plan.  Delivery trucks will unload in the rear lot, as is 
currently happening, and new vehicles will arrive on trucks approximately 3 times per month.   
 
Commissioner Jablonski inquired about land that is currently used for car storage continue to be used for 
storage.  The applicant stated that land will no longer be used for storage & he could not be sure how the 
land will be utilized in the future since Land Rover only leases the property.  The applicant went on to state  



Plan Commission Minutes 
September 25, 2018 

3 

 
additional storage space would not likely be needed but the dealership would need to seek out additional off 
site space if the need arose.   
 
Commissioner Crnovich asked if the dealership would be offering subscription services from the Hinsdale 
location.  The applicant clarified that no subscription service would be offered at Hinsdale.   
 
Commissioner Fiascone expressed concerns about adequate customer parking.  The applicant stated that 
there are 261 stalls shown on the plan, but none have been designated for strictly customer use at this time.  
It appears there are approximately 10 sales costumer stalls.  Service customers would not need a parking stall 
due the procedure of using the designated service drive that is well staffed to keep cars for service moving to 
service stalls.   
 
Two neighbors spoke during the public comment period, Mike Strick and Michael Rempert, and both spoke 
favorably for the request.  Mr. Strick expressed that the neighbors were primarily concerned about traffic, 
and Land Rover has been very responsive and have generally met their concerns; and he personally feels 
happy with the level of response, cooperation, and end product.  Mr. Rempert had a concern about the 
landscape plan, but it turned out to be an oversight.  The landscape plan included former interior floor plan 
that does not match the latest site plan. 
 
Following a motion to recommend approval of the proposed major adjustment to the exterior appearance/site 
plan as submitted, the Village of Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote of six Ayes and three “Absent” 
unanimously recommends that the President and Board of Trustees approve the application as submitted.   
 
Concurrent SIGN PERMIT REVIEW – Case A-43- 2018 – Eight (8) signs proposed, Plan Commission 
recommendations to be forwarded to the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA, Case V-07-18). 
 
The applicant briefly explained that efforts were made to blend corporate guidelines for signs with those of 
the Village.  Six walls signs and two grounds signs are requested.   
 
Discussion followed about the number of signs.  Commissioners Jablonski & Crnovich expressed concerns 
with the number of signs, it was suggested that the ground signs might not be necessary with the six wall 
signs.  Chairman Cashman pointed out the site is located on two intersections and due to that fact, 2 ground 
signs may be helpful.  Commissioner Fiascone agreed the second ground sign would be helpful.  The 
Chairman also pointed out that one of the ground signs will not be illuminated. Commissioner Jablonski 
went on to suggest the Oak Street sign also note directions to “Service Center” under the “Welcome” portion 
of the sign to better direct customers.  The applicant will check the Land Rover sign guidelines to determine 
if that would be an option.   
 
A motion was unanimously approved (6 Ayes, 3 Absent) as submitted with the recommendation for the 
ZBA to closely study the number of signs and if signs 5 and 6 are visible due to the existing building at 300 
Ogden Avenue.   
 
 
Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:41 p.m. after a unanimous vote.    
 
Respectfully Submitted by Jennifer Spires, Community Development Dept. 



HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
RE:  Case A-34-2018 and A-43-2018 – Applicant:  Bill Jacobs Group Land Rover – 336 E. Ogden Avenue 
 
Request:  Major Adjustment to Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Review and Signage in the B-3 General Business 

District 
 
DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW:  September 25, 2018  
 
DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1ST READING: November 6, 2018 
 
 

 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

I.  FINDINGS 
 
1. The PC heard testimony from the applicant, Kevin Jacobs, and applicant’s architect, Jerry Mortier. They reviewed 

the floorplan and front façade plans to revise the showroom to include the Jaguar brand to the subject property. The 
front building setback would be pulled back to reduce the existing legal nonconforming setback distance from 75’ to 
60’. It was noted by the applicant that the overall SF of the building will decrease slightly (11-605(E)).  
 

2. The Plan Commission Chairman acknowledged and commended the applicant for working with the neighbors prior 
to the meeting by hosting four (4) neighborhood meetings. The applicant reviewed that they worked with the 
neighbors regarding the south, east and west sides of the building before submitting their plans to the Village, and 
noted the significant reduction in overhead doors (11-604(E)(3) and 11-604(F)(1)(f)).  

 
3.    The applicant reviewed the concurrent request to the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) for the front drive aisle to 

reduce traffic in the rear of the lot (adjacent to the residential neighborhood), parking display pads in front of the 
building (11-604(F)(1)(f)) and signage.  

 
4. A Plan Commissioner stated that the request is to allow 2 brands, which presumably would increase vehicle 

deliveries and service visits by 25%-50%, and stated this was a concern by the neighbors. The question is, how the 
4 car delivery drive would serve the increase in demand. The applicant responded that area is for drop off and pick 
up only, and the service area only increased by one car bay. The applicant stated that cars are not delivered on the 
street, are instructed not to, and to report to them if anyone sees street deliveries. The Chairman asked 2 follow-up 
questions; if the 2 brands were discussed at the neighborhood meetings and what is the turnover rate for deliveries. 
The applicant responded yes, and it is up to the manufacturer, but it is typical for 3 times a month, respectively.  
(11-604(F)(1)(f)) 

 
5. A Plan Commissioner asked what the plan is for the current Land Rover location, immediately west of the subject 

property at 300 E. Ogden Avenue. The applicant responded they do not own that property, and will not be using it 
for the Land Rover/Jaguar business per their sales tax agreement with the Village.  (11-604(F)(1)(f)) 

 
6. A Plan Commissioner asked if this location would offer subscription services. The applicant replied that they just 

launched that program in Naperville, but will not offer subscription services from the Hinsdale location. (11-
604(F)(1)(a)) 

 
7. A Plan Commissioner asked if the site plan offers enough customer parking. The applicant responded that the 

service drive is well staffed, and customer parking spaces would be adequate. (11-604(F)(1)(g)) 
 
8. Two neighbors spoke during the public comment period, Mike Stick and Michael Rempert, and both spoke favorably 

for the request. Mike Stick expressed that the neighbors were primarily concerned about traffic, and Land Rover has 
been very responsive and have generally met their concerns; and he personally feels happy with the 
responsiveness, cooperation and the end product. Michael Rempert had a concern on the landscape plan, but it 
turned out to be an oversight. The landscape plan included former interior floor plans that did not match the latest 
site plan. (11-604(E)(3) and 11-604(F)(1)(f)). 

 
9. The Plan Commission in general, supported the façade and logistical improvements to benefit the building, site plan 

and residential district to the south (11-606(E)). 



 
 
 
10.  The Plan Commission in general, supported the visual elements of the requested signage. However, was 

concerned about the overall number of signage (if there are too many for the site) and questioned if signs 5 and 6, 
facing west, would be visible due to the existing building at 300 W. Ogden Avenue. These concerns were 
recommended for the ZBA to consider (11-607(E)). 

 
11. The Plan Commission approved the second ground sign modification request, as presented, supporting that it is  
         appropriate to the subject property (11-607(F)). 
 
 
 

II. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Following a motion to recommend approval of the proposed major adjustment to the exterior appearance/site plan 
as submitted, the Village of Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote of six (6) “Ayes,” and three (3) “Absent,” 
recommends that the President and Board of Trustees approve the application as submitted. 
 
Following a motion to approve the proposed sign application as submitted, the Village of Hinsdale Plan 
Commission, on a vote of six (6) “Ayes,” and three (3) “Absent,” approved the request, and recommends that the 
ZBA carefully consider the overall number of signage and review if signs 5 and 6 are visible, as presented in the 
application (requiring variation relief). 
 
 
 
 
THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By:              __________________________________, Chairman 

                               
                          

                          Dated this __________ day of ____________________, 2018.   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   October 10, 2018 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  16 E. First Street – Mucci Di Firenze – 1 New non-Illuminated Wall Sign  

Case A-46-2018 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received a sign application from Cynosure, on behalf of Mucci Di Firenze, 
requesting approval to install 1 new non-illuminated wall sign at 16 E. First Street, within the Historic 
Downtown District in the B-2 Central Business District.  This request will be reviewed by the Historic 
Preservation Commission at its November 7, 2018, meeting for its recommendation(s). 
 
Request and Analysis 
 
The requested wall sign is proposed to be located on the front building facade. The panel material is 
aluminum composite with vinyl lettering. It would display gold text on a green sign backing. The 
proposed wall sign is 2’-9” tall and 5’-11” wide for an area of 16.4 SF (includes sign backing). Per the 
Code, a multi-tenant building is permitted to request for 25 SF per tenant.  
 
Process 
 
Per Section 11-607(D) and the nature of the request, this application would require a meeting 
before the PC and does not require public notification. The PC maintains final authority on signage with 
no further action required by the Board of Trustees. 

 
Per Section 11-607(E), no sign permit shall be granted pursuant to this section unless the applicant shall 
establish that: 

 
1. Visual Compatibility:   The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which 
the sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

 
2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

 
3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity 
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to which it pertains. 
 
4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular traffic, 
detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the number of 
signs in the area. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment 1 – Sign Application and Exhibits 
Attachment 2 -  Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 3 -  Street View of 16 E. First Street  
 



Attachment 1



Attachment 1



Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   October 10, 2018 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  550 W. Ogden Ave. – Hinsdale Orthopedics - 1 Ground Sign Reface and 1 New 

Illuminated Wall Sign - Case A-39-2018  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received a sign application from Hinsdale Orthopedics of 550 W. Ogden 
Avenue, requesting approval to reface an existing internally illuminated ground sign and install a new 
illuminated wall sign in the O-2 Limited Office District.   
 
Request and Analysis 
 
On June 8, 2011, the PC approved 1 ground sign and 1 additional ground sign modification request, 
provided that the applicant provide two-tiered, four season landscaping around both signs.  This request 
is to reface the existing ground sign on the corner of Ogden Avenue and Monroe Street. The existing 
ground sign has a sign face 3’-6” tall and 8’-1” wide, for an area of 28.3 SF and is internally illuminated 
with fluorescent lighting (Attachment 6). The ground sign reface request would mount to the existing 
cabinet; however, the proposed sign face area is larger than the existing. 
 
The new proposed ground sign face is 3’-7.5” tall and 8’-1.5” wide, for an area of 29.45 SF. It features 3 
colors: red, light blue and dark blue on a white aluminum pan background. The illumination exhibit 
displays halo lit text at night. This request does not include changes to the existing second ground sign. 
 
The new proposed wall sign is to be located on the north east corner of the building, facing east to 
Monroe Street. The wall sign is 5’ tall and 12’ wide, for an area of 60 SF. The northeast corner of the 
building façade features second story windows. Per the Code, wall signs must be no higher than the 
bottom of any second floor window or 20’, whichever is less. The top of the proposed wall sign is 
approximately 12’-10” and appears to be lower than the second floor window in the exhibit. The 
building permit review would enforce that it is lower than the second floor window (Attachment 4). 
 
Per the Code: “Signs Adjacent To Residential Areas: Any illuminated sign located on a lot abutting or 
across a street from, and visible from, any residentially zoned area shall not be illuminated between the 
hours of ten o'clock (10:00) P.M. and seven o'clock (7:00) A.M. except that such sign may remain 
illuminated during such time as the activity to which the sign pertains is open for business so long as 
such sign is not a public or private nuisance.”  It should be noted the south half of 540 W. Ogden Avenue 
is zoned R-4 Single Family Residential and has been approved for a plan for 8 single family residential 
homes (Attachment 8, Kensington School Case A-12-2018).  
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Process 
 
Per Section 11-607(D) and the nature of the request, this application would require a meeting 
before the PC and does not require public notification. The PC maintains final authority on signage with 
no further action required by the Board of Trustees. 

 
Per Section 11-607(E), no sign permit shall be granted pursuant to this section unless the applicant shall 
establish that: 

 
1. Visual Compatibility:   The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which 
the sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

 
2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

 
3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity 
to which it pertains. 
 
4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular traffic, 
detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the number of 
signs in the area. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Attachment 1 – Sign Application and Exhibits 
Attachment 2 -  Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 3 -  Birds Eye View of 550 W. Ogden Ave. 
Attachment 4 -  Street View of 550 W. Ogden Ave. 
Attachment 5 -  Parcel View of 550 W. Ogden Ave. 
Attachment 6 -  June 8, 2011, PC Memo for current signage  
Attachment 7 -  June 8, 2011, PC Minutes (see pages 2 and 3, highlighted) 
Attachment 8 - Final Plat of Kensington Subdivision  
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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MINUTES 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

PLAN COMMISSION 

JUNE 8, 2011 

MEMORIAL HALL 

7:30 P.M. 

 

Chairman Byrnes called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m., Wednesday, June 8, 2011 in 

Memorial Hall, the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois.   

 

PRESENT: Chairman Byrnes, Commissioner Stifflear, Commissioner Moore, 

Commissioner Kluchenek and Commissioner Crnovich 

 

ABSENT: Commissioner Johnson, Commissioner Sullins, Commissioner Brody 

and Commissioner Nelson 

 

ALSO PRESENT: Sean Gascoigne, Village Planner 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Approval of Minutes 

The Plan Commission reviewed the minutes from the May 11, 2011 meeting.  Commissioner 

Moore motioned to approve the minutes of May 11, 2011 as amended.  Commissioner 

Crnovich seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Findings and Recommendations 

A-05-2011 – 10 N. Washington Street – Eden Supportive Living – Special Use for a 

Planned Development, Special Use for a Personal Care Facility and Exterior 

Appearance Site Plan Review. 

 

Chairman Byrnes provided a brief summary of the discussion that took place on this 

agenda item at the last Plan Commission meeting and highlighted the findings and 

recommendations that were included based on these discussions.  Commissioner Kluchenek 

motioned to approve the findings and recommendations for case A-05-2011 – 10 N. 

Washington Street – Eden Supportive Living for a Special Use for a Planned Development, 

Special Use for a Personal Care Facility and Exterior Appearance Site Plan Review. 

Commissioner Moore seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

A-08-2011 – 149 E. Ogden (BP) – Design Review Overlay Permit, Special Use for 

Carryout and Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Review for a New Quick Serve 

Restaurant Facility. 

 

Chairman Byrnes provided a brief summary of the discussion that took place on this 

agenda item at the last Plan Commission meeting and highlighted the findings and 

recommendations that were included based on these discussions.  The Commission 

requested that the language be modified to reference the decorative fence required, also be 

protective.  Commissioner Moore motioned to approve the findings and recommendations 

Approved: 

Stifflear/Nelson
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for case A-08-2011 – 149 E. Ogden (BP) – Design Review Overlay Permit, Special Use for 

Carryout and Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Review for a New Quick Serve Restaurant 

Facility as amended.  Commissioner Crnovich seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

       

Scheduling of Public Hearings 

A-11-2011 – Text Amendment to Article III, Section 3-110 of the Hinsdale Zoning 

Code as it relates to the Elimination of the Floor Area Ratio Requirement for New 

Single-Family Residences that Receive Design Review Approval from the Design 

Review Commission. 

 

Chairman Byrnes stated the public hearing would be scheduled for July 13, 2011. 

 

Sign Permit Review 

550 W. Ogden Avenue – Hinsdale Orthopaedics – Two Ground Signs 

 

Bill Gilligan, Doctor with Hinsdale Orthopaedics provided a brief description and history of 

the proposal.   

 

Chairman Byrnes confirmed that the signs would be the same location as the existing signs. 

 

Mr. Gilligan confirmed and indicated that part of the need for the Monroe Street sign was 

for safety and to properly identify their entrance due to potential confusion with other 

parking lots immediately adjacent to theirs. 

 

General discussion ensued regarding the proposed properties of the signs. 

 

Chairman Byrnes asked Village Planner Gascoigne if these signs were code compliant. 

 

Mr. Gascoigne indicated that while one ground sign is normally permitted, the Commission 

is afforded the ability to approve one additional sign of any type already allowed.  The one 

caveat being that if the Commission deemed a second sign appropriate, both signs would 

now need to comply with the single sign square footage requirement of 50 square feet which 

these would. 

 

Commissioner Moore stated that because these are replacing existing signs, it is corner lot 

with two entrances and it meets the square footage requirements, she felt the request was 

fine. 

 

Commissioner Stifflear asked the Commission to consider that this was adjacent to 

residential properties and the potential precedence that could be created regarding 

illuminated signage next to residential districts. 

 

Mr. Gascoigne indicated that the zoning code does already take into consideration, signage 

next to residential districts by regulating the hours they can be illuminated, setbacks and 

the foot candle allowances at residential property lines. 
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Chairman Byrnes indicated that some patients come from a good distance, aren’t familiar 

with Hinsdale and have night appointments, which he felt justified the need for the signs to 

be illuminated. 

 

General discussion ensued regarding the location of the sign on Monroe and the impact the 

illumination would have on the neighboring residential. 

 

Commissioner Crnovich expressed interest in seeing landscaping around the signs and 

questioned if the applicant had given any thought to reducing the size of the sign on 

Monroe. 

 

Mr. Gilligan stated that they didn’t feel that was appropriate and they were simply 

replacing what was already there and not increasing the size. 

 

Commissioner Moore asked if there would be any objections to placing low-growing shrubs 

around the signs.   

 

Mr. Gilligan indicated that they would have no problem with that at all. 

 

General discussion ensued regarding the types and sizes of plants that could be used 

around the signs. 

 

Commissioner Stifflear motioned for the approval of signage for 550 W. Ogden Avenue – 

Hinsdale Orthopaedics for two ground signs, with the condition that the applicant provide 

two-tiered, four-season landscaping around both signs.  Commissioner Moore seconded.  

The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Adjournment 

 

Commissioner Kluchenek moved to adjourn.  Commissioner Moore seconded and the 

meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. on June 8, 2011. 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 

 

 

Sean Gascoigne 

Village Planner 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   October 10, 2018 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  550 W. Ogden Ave. – Hinsdale Orthopedics - Exterior Appearance/Site Plan for Parking 

Lot Improvements - Case A-40-2018 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an Exterior Appearance/Site Plan review application from 
Morgan/Harbour Construction, on behalf Hinsdale Orthopedics, requesting approval for the removal of 
an interior parking lot landscape island, proposed parking lot landscape plan and parking lot lighting 
plan. The interior parking lot landscape island, per the applicant, was removed because it blocked the 
view of the buildings main entrance, was an unpleasant obstacle in the parking lot and provided an 
additional 5 parking spaces. 
 
Request and Analysis 
 
The parking lot interior green space island was approximately 36’ by 24’ and had a concrete wall with an 
average height of 1.5 feet. Per the Code, the maximum lot coverage is 80 percent in the O-2 Limited 
Office District. The removal of the landscape island increased the lot coverage from 68 percent to 69 
percent. It should be noted that the applicant worked with the Village Forestry and Parks 
Superintendent, John Finnell, on the proposed landscaping along Monroe Street.  
 
The applicant has provided a lighting and photometric plan, illustrating the existing and 2 proposed 14’ 
tall light poles at the west side of the subject property parking lot, and face/illuminates east (the west 
side is adjacent to the Manor Care parking lot at 600 W. Ogden Avenue). The proposed height and 
photometric plan are code compliant. Exhibits of the light fixture, pole and lighting data are included in 
the application. Staff has requested the applicant clearly review the lighting data given the various 
options included on the exhibits at the Plan Commission meeting.  
 
Pertinent zoning code the applicant must meet includes:  

●  “Any permitted accessory lighting fixtures shall be so designed, arranged, and operated as to 
prevent glare and direct rays of light from being cast onto any adjacent public or private 
property or street and so as not to produce excessive sky reflected glare. Except for streetlights, 
no exterior light in or adjacent to any residential district shall be so designed, arranged, or 
operated to produce an intensity of light exceeding one-half (1/2) foot-candle at any residential 
lot line.” (Section 9-101(D)(9)) 
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●  “Fixed lighting shall be provided for all parking lots and garages accommodating more than 
ten (10) vehicles. Such lighting shall be so arranged as to prevent direct glare of beams onto any 
public or private property or streets by the use of luminaire cutoffs. All lighting shall be reduced 
to security levels at all times of nonuse.” (Section 9-104(H)(2)(h)) 

  
 
Process 
 
Pursuant to Section 11-606, the Chairman of the Plan Commission shall at the public meeting on the 
application for exterior appearance review allow any member of the general public to offer relevant, 
material and nonrepetitive comment on the application. Within 60 days following the conclusion of the 
public meeting, the Plan Commission shall transmit to the Board of Trustees its recommendation, in the 
form specified in subsection 11-103(H) of this article, recommending either approval or disapproval of 
the exterior appearance and site plan based on the standards set forth in subsection F1 of this Section 
11-604 and 11-606. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Exterior Appearance Application Request and Exhibits (packet) 
Attachment 2 -  Zoning Map and Project Location 
Attachment 3 -  Street View of 550 W. Ogden Ave. 
Attachment 4 -  Birds Eye View of 550 W. Ogden Ave. 
Attachment 5 -  Parcel View of 550 W. Ogden Ave. 
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Attachment 2: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   October 10, 2018 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  Public Hearing for Text Amendment to change certain height, bulk, yard and coverage 

requirements for O-2 Zoning Lots adjoining  3 or more lots with single-family homes                                                       
Request by the Village of Hinsdale - Case A-24-2018 
Continued from July 11, 2018, PC Meeting  

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 
 
On March 14, 2018, the Plan Commission (PC) reviewed a Tentative Plat of Subdivision and Map 
Amendment request from Charles Marlas, of Kensington School, at 540 W. Ogden Avenue (Case A-44-
2017). The application proposed to subdivide 1.74 acres of the northern half of the lot facing Ogden 
Avenue, and amend the zoning from R-4 single family residential to an O-2 limited office district.  
 
Per the code, the bulk and height regulations of the O-2 district encourage development that is 
architecturally consistent with smaller sites and compatible with nearby residential uses. However, 
during the public hearing at the PC meeting and Board of Trustees meeting on April 17, 2018, 
neighborhood residents stated concerns over the long-term development implications of the subject 
property under the O-2 zoning classification, if Kensington School were to move.  
 
On July 11, 2018, the PC raised concerns regarding the legal aspect of the request and “spot zoning”. 
The Village Attorney has written a memorandum to address the legal aspect, and will attend the 
October 10, 2018, PC public hearing (Attachment 1). Staff has included a data analysis of all the O-2 
parcels in the Village, per the request of the PC. It is concluded that the only parcel the request would 
affect is 540 W. Ogden Avenue (Attachment 2). 
 

Request and Analysis 

 
In response to the concerns voiced by the local residents at the PC and Village Board meetings, the 
Village of Hinsdale is requesting a Text Amendment to Section 6-111(H), Exceptions and Explanatory 
Notes to the height, bulk, yard and coverage requirements for O-2 zoned lots (over 1 acre) adjoining 
three or more single family lots.  
The proposed text amendment would: 

●  Limit the maximum structure height from 40 feet to 25 feet (homes in the residential districts 
are allowed up to 30 feet or more).  

● Require minimum lot coverage and setback requirements 30% increased than current. 
    ► Front yard setback from 25 feet to 32.5 feet 
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    ► Side yard setback from 10 feet to 13 feet    

                  ► Rear yard setback from 20 feet to 26 feet 
●  Limit the maximum floor area ratio (F.A.R) from .50 to .25 (the O-1 is limited to .40 and a  

comparable lot size in the R-4 district is allowed .20 plus 2,000 SF) 
 
Process 
 
Within forty five (45) days following the conclusion of the public hearing, the PC shall transmit to the 
Village Board its recommendation in the form specified by subsection 11-103(H). The failure of the PC to 
act within forty five (45) days following the conclusion of such hearing, or such further time to which the 
applicant may agree, shall be deemed a recommendation for the approval of the proposed amendment 
as submitted. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – O-2 Zoning District Regulations Memorandum by Village Attorney 
Attachment 2 -  PC Requested O-2 Zoning Analysis Data  
Attachment 3 – Text Amendment and Plan Commission Applications by the Village 
Attachment 4 -  Plan Commission March 14, 2018, Public Hearing Transcript Excerpt 
Attachment 5 -  Zoning Ordinance Section 6-111   
Attachment 6 -  O-2 Limited Office District Map 
Attachment 7 -  Transcript of PC Public Hearing on July 11, 2018 
 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=10&find=11-103


 
 

  

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Hinsdale Plan Commission 
 
FROM: Lance Malina , Village Attorney 
 
DATE: September 12, 2018 
 
RE: O2 Zoning District Regulations 
 

The Plan Commission at its July meeting raised concerns about the proposed amendments to 
the O2 Zoning District regulations. Staff has asked that I address the legal aspects of those 
concerns. I have reviewed the transcript of the meeting and I see two legal issues that have been 
raised: (1) so-called “spot zoning” concerns; and (2) concerns regarding no direct notice being 
given to specific property owners. 

Regarding spot zoning, it is important to know that there really is no such thing as spot zoning, 
per se. What I mean by that is that a zoning district can contain only one lot in an area or a 
municipality and a text amendment can end up affecting only one lot and still be legal. What 
really matters is whether the result that is legislated is a rational approach to the overall plan for 
the Village. Having said that, the concern raised by the Plan Commission about whether the 
effect of the proposed regulations has been studied as applied to all properties is a good one. If 
the proposed protections are just as important to residential use abutting other commercial 
districts, then the regulations could be argued to be irrational and arbitrary, and challenged on 
that basis. The key, therefore, is whether or not the proposed new regulations make sense in the 
overall land-use plan of the Village and not how may properties they affect. 

Regarding the notice question, the Municipal Code is quite clear that direct notice to property 
owners potentially affected by a text amendment is not required. Part of the reason for this is that 
it is often not possible to figure out which properties might be affected by a regulation (unlike a 
map amendment), and giving notice to some and not others would create a legal problem of its 
own. Having said this, there is appears to be less of a problem giving direct notice in this 
particular case because the set of all property owners in an O2 District affected by the proposed 
regulations is more easily determined. Also, notice could even be sent to all property owners in 
an O2 District to completely avoid the due process problem that I pointed out above. 

 

 
20 N. Wacker Drive, Ste 1660   15010 S. Ravinia Avenue, Ste 10 

Chicago, Illinois 60606-2903   Orland Park, Illinois 60462-5353 

T 312 984 6400   F 312 984 6444 T 708 349 3888   F 708 349 1506 

LCMalina@ktjlaw.com 

    

DD: 312-984-6436 

gtsmith@ktjlaw.com  www.ktjlaw.com 
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If you have any questions or concerns regarding this matter, please feel free to contact me. 

 

      KLEIN, THORPE & JENKINS, LTD. 
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Attachment 2 – Analysis Data (part 2 of 3) 

 

O-2 Address Over 1 Acre 
Adjoins 3 or more single 
family lots 

Affected by Text 
Amendment? 

7 N. Grant St.  No No No 

111 Chicago Ave. No No No 

211 W. Chicago Ave. No No No 

        

40 S. Clay St. Yes (3.3 Acres) No No 

333 Chestnut St. Yes (2.7 Acres) No No 

34 Chestnut St. No No No 

        

534 Chestnut St. No Yes No 

522 Chestnut St. No No No 

        

60 S. Grant St. No No No 

107 S. Grant St. No No No 

50 S. Lincoln St. No (.99 Acres) No No 

126 W. 1st St. No No No 

118 W. 1st St. No No No 

114 W. 1st St. No No No 

120 S. Lincoln St. Yes (1.1 Acres) No No 

21 W. 2nd St. No No No 
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Attachment 2– Analysis Data (part 3 of 3) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

O-2 Address Over 1 Acre 
Adjoins 3 or more single family 
lots 

Affected by Text 
Amendment? 

501 W. Ogden Ave. No No No 

550 N. Ogden Ave. Yes (1.8 Acres) No No 

600 W. Ogden Ave. Yes (1.3 Acres) No No 

540 W. Ogden Ave. Yes (1.74 Acres) Yes (per map amendment) Yes 

        

121 Post Cir. No No No 

123 Post Cir. No Yes No 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

DEPARTMENT 

 

 

PLAN COMMISSION APPLICATION  
  

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City/Zip: _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________ 

 

Applicant 
Name: ___________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City/Zip: _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________ 

 

Owner 

Others, if any, involved in the project (i.e. Architect, Attorney, Engineer) 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City/Zip: _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________ 

 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City/Zip: _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________ 

 

Disclosure of Village Personnel:  (List the name, address and Village position of any officer or employee 
of the Village with an interest in the owner of record, the Applicant or the property that is the subject of this 
application, and the nature and extent of that interest) 
 
1) ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2) ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3) ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
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II.  SITE INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Address of subject property: _____________________________________________________ 
 
Property identification number (P.I.N. or tax number): ____ - ____ - ______ - _______  
 
Brief description of proposed project: ________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
General description or characteristics of the site: ________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Existing zoning and land use: _________________ 
 
Surrounding zoning and existing land uses: 
 
North: _______________________________     South: ______________________________ 
 
East: ________________________________     West: _______________________________ 
 
Proposed zoning and land use: _____________________________ 
 
Existing square footage of property: _____________________ square feet 
 
Existing square footage of all buildings on the property: _____________ square feet Please mark the approval(s) you are seeking and attach all applicable applications and 
standards for each approval requested: 
   
  Site Plan Approval 11-604 

 
 Design Review Permit 11-605E 
 
 Exterior Appearance 11-606E  
 
 Special Use Permit 11-602E 

Special Use Requested: _______________ 
___________________________________ 

     ________________________________________ 

 Map and Text Amendments 11-601E 
Amendment Requested: ______________ 
__________________________________ 

      ______________________________________ 
 
 Planned Development 11-603E 
 
 Development in the B-2 Central Business 

District Questionnaire 
 
 Major Adjustment to Final Plan Development 
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TABLE OF COMPLIANCE 

Address of subject property: ________________________________________________________ 
 
The following table is based on the __________ Zoning District.   
 

 Minimum Code 
Requirements 

Proposed/Existing  
Development 

   

Minimum Lot Area (s.f.)   

Minimum Lot Depth   

Minimum Lot Width   

Building Height   

   Number of Stories   

Front Yard Setback   

Corner Side Yard Setback   

Interior Side Yard Setback   

Rear Yard Setback    

Maximum Floor Area Ratio 
(F.A.R.)* 

  

Maximum Total Building 
Coverage* 

  

Maximum Total Lot Coverage*   

Parking Requirements 
 
 
 

  

Parking front yard setback   

Parking corner side yard 
setback 

  

Parking interior side yard 
setback 

  

Parking rear yard setback   

Loading Requirements   

Accessory Structure 
Information 

  

* Must provide actual square footage number and percentage. 
 
 
Where any lack of compliance is shown, state the reason and explain the Village’s authority, if any, to approve the 
application despite such lack of compliance: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
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Must be accompanied by completed Plan Commission Application 
 

Is this a:   Map Amendment  Text Amendment 
 
Address of the subject property  
 
Description of the proposed request:  
 
REVIEW CRITERIA 
  
Section 11-601 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code regulates Amendments.  The amendment process 
established is intended to provide a means for making changes in the text of the Zoning Code and in 
the zoning map that have more or less general significance or application.  It is not intended to relieve 
particular hardships nor to confer special privileges or rights.  Rather, it is intended as a tool to adjust 
the provisions of the Zoning Code and the zoning map in light of changing, newly discovered, or 
newly important conditions, situations, or knowledge.  The wisdom of amending the text of the Zoning 
Code is a matter committed to the sound legislative discretion of the Board of Trustees and is not 
dictated by any set standard.  However, in determining whether a proposed amendment should be 
granted or denied the Board of Trustees should be guided by the principle that its power to amend 
this Code is not an arbitrary one but one that may be exercised only when the public good demands 
or requires the amendment to be made.  In considering whether that principle is satisfied in any 
particular case, the Board of Trustees should weigh, among other factors, the below criteria. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1. The consistency of the proposed amendment with the purpose of this Code.   

 
  
 

  
2. The existing uses and zoning classifications for properties in the vicinity of the subject property.   

  

 
3. The trend of development in the vicinity of the subject property, including changes, if any, such 

trend since the subject property was placed in its present zoning classification.   
 
 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
DEPARTMENT 
ZONING CODE TEXT AND MAP  
AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
 

Below are the 14 standards for amendments that will be the criteria used by the Plan Commission 
and Board of Trustees in determining the merits of this application.  Please respond to each 
standard as it relates to the application.  Please use an additional sheet of paper to respond to 
questions if needed.  If the standard is not applicable, please mark N/A. 
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4. The extent, if any, to which the value of the subject property is diminished by the existing zoning 
classification applicable to it.   

 
 
 
 
5. The extent to which any such diminution in value is offset by an increase in the public health, 

safety, and welfare.    
 
 
 
 
6. The extent, if any, to which the use and enjoyment of adjacent properties would be affected by 

the proposed amendment.  
 

 

7. The extent, if any, to which the value of adjacent properties would be affected by the proposed 
amendment.  

 
 
 
8. The extent, if any, to which the future orderly development of adjacent properties would be 

affected by the proposed amendment.  
 
 
 
 
9. The suitability of the subject property for uses permitted or permissible under its present zoning 

classification.   
 
 
 
 
10. The availability of adequate ingress to and egress from the subject property and the extent to 

which traffic conditions in the immediate vicinity of the subject property would be affected by the 
proposed amendment.  

 
 
 
 
11. The availability of adequate utilities and essential public services to the subject property to 

accommodate the uses permitted or permissible under the present zoning classification. 
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12. The length of time, if any, that the subject property has been vacant, considered in the context of 
the pace of development in the vicinity of the subject property.   

 
 
 
 
 
13. The community need for the proposed amendment and for the uses and development it would 

allow.   
 
 
 
 
14. The reasons, where relevant, why the subject property should be established as part of an 

overlay district and the positive and negative effects such establishment could be expected to 
have on persons residing in the area.   
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101

STATE OF ILLINOIS )

                  ) SS:

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

         BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE

                  PLAN COMMISSION

In the Matter of:                        )

                                         )

Case A-44-2017 - 540 W. Ogden Avenue -   )    
Kensington School - Map Amendment        )   
and concurrent tentative Plat of         )

Subdivision to subdivide and rezone      )   
approximately 1.74 acres to an 0-2       )   
Limited Office District and subdivide    )   
approximately 2.26 acres into 8 R-4      )   
Single Family District lots.             )

         CONTINUED REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and 

testimony taken at the public hearing of the 

above-entitled matter before the Hinsdale Plan 

Commission at 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, 

Illinois, on the 14th day of March, 2018, at the 

hour of 7:45 p.m.

     BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

         MR. STEPHEN CASHMAN, Chairman; 

         MS. DEB BRASELTON, Member;

MS. JULIE CRNOVICH, Member;

         MS. ANNA FIASCONE, Member; 

MR. GERALD JABLONSKI, Member; 

MR. JIM KRILLENBERGER, Member;       

MR. MARK WILLOBEE, Member.  
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have a stoplight, then anybody who wanted to go 1

out onto Ogden can go out onto Ogden and you 2

wouldn't have people going around the 3

neighborhood to go in there off Monroe.  4

Also, while I'm not an expert 5

forecasting, I'm going to guess that most of the 6

traffic that's going to come in there are going 7

to be people who have driven by it on Ogden, see 8

it and say, I'm going by there anyway, I'm going 9

to drop my child off in the morning and I think 08:43:16PM 10

there's probably going to be significantly more 11

activity coming from west of the facility on 12

Ogden.  Again, I'm not an expert but just 13

looking at that.  14

Another principal concern I have is 15

we are talking about we have to have the garbage 16

right in case this goes to another facility.  17

Well, what happens if this doesn't work and it's 18

now O-2.  We talked about a special use permit.  19

My guess is that's a lot easier to change, 08:43:44PM 20

especially if we have a facility sitting there 21

empty like Amling's did.  22

159

What are the restrictions?  We are 1

looking at this school.  People.  Traffic.  Not 2

much in the day, nothing on the weekends.  But 3

what could it become?  And what's the 4

opportunity if it ever is sold to something else 5

in the future to even look back again?  We 6

haven't even talked about that.  And so as 7

neighbors, we haven't even thought about -- I 8

have no idea what those controls are.  But that 9

would be a real issue for us.  08:44:14PM 10

So that would be it.  I'm 11

optimistic on the parking even though I'm 12

concerned about people just feeling it's a whole 13

lot easier to come up to our street.  They have 14

done it in the past before that parking lot 15

opened down there, so it's not too far.  They 16

absolutely will.  But with everybody's 17

commitment and the village's cooperation, 18

hopefully we can run that.  19

I am very concerned about the 08:44:50PM 20

traffic and hearing statistics that the roadways 21

are designed sufficiently to carry the traffic 22
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doesn't give me a lot of comfort.  I don't want 1

the amount of traffic those roadways are 2

designed to carry.  Thanks very much.  3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you. 4

MS. BRASELTON:  Thank you. 5

MS. SCODRO:  Good evening.  Laura 6

Scodro.  I'm on North Street between Madison and 7

Monroe Street.  8

And just the talk with Christ 9

Church, that's not finalized yet.  That talk 08:45:26PM 10

with Christ Church, that's just in the talking 11

phase, nothing is finalized.  So there is no 12

shuttle right now, okay.  13

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Right. 14

MS. SCODRO:  Everybody keeps forgetting 15

this is a neighborhood two blocks from Monroe 16

school.  All the children that are walking to 17

school at that time is during your peak hour of 18

drop off and pickup.  So we are increasing 19

people coming down Monroe, North and Madison at 08:45:44PM 20

the time that school children are walking to 21

school and standing at bus stops and I think you 22
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all need to really pay attention.  I'm concerned 1

about the parking also but I'm concerned about 2

the increased traffic when we are a 3

neighborhood.  4

When we bought 25 years ago, we 5

went to the village to make sure what would 6

happen if the Amling's ever sold or went away 7

and we were told it would go to residential 8

housing.  So I would like you all to make it 9

residential housing.  That's what we bought.  08:46:14PM 10

That's what our property value is based on.  11

Belluomini's sold and they went to residential 12

housing so I don't see why it won't work in our 13

neighborhood too.  So if you all could keep that 14

in consideration and maybe honor what the zoning 15

was put in when everybody bought in that 16

neighborhood, I'd really appreciate it. 17

MR. SADLOWSKI:  My name is Don 18

Sadlowski, S-a-d-l-o-w-s-k-i, and I live at 532 19

West North Street.  Thank you very much for the 08:47:00PM 20

opportunity to address you this evening.  21

I think we have had a lot of 22
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have already been cited in the traffic study 1

underestimate the impact on North Street east of 2

Monroe and on Madison Street between North and 3

Ogden.  Kensington has previously stated they 4

draw from a three-mile radius.  With three 5

Kensington schools already located east of 6

Hinsdale in LaGrange and Western Springs and 7

much of the northbound area occupied by the 8

forest preserve, the golf course and the 9

McDonald's campus, it stands to reason the 09:01:08PM 10

school will draw primarily from the west and the 11

south.  Three miles west stretches all the way 12

to Fairview Avenue in Downers Grove.  This means 13

numerous families will likely need to head west, 14

especially at pickup, putting even more pressure 15

on the light at Ogden and Madison.  16

The driving on Madison is very 17

aggressive.  I live right there, I see it every 18

day.  A year ago somebody knocked over the fire 19

hydrant at the corner of our property.  People 09:01:34PM 20

as they come down the street and they see the 21

light is green, they speed up to make the light.  22
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I have been slowing down to turn -- many times I 1

slow down to turn into my corner, somebody is 2

passing me in order to make the light.  Their 3

driving is incredibly aggressive because people 4

know that that light is short.  They jackrabbit 5

across to make a left when I'm coming southbound 6

from Fullersburg Woods.  It's a very, very 7

aggressive corner.  8

And I would also remind you that 9

this traffic study was conducted during the 09:02:08PM 10

winter.  During the summer there are a lot of 11

bicyclists and there are a lot of pedestrians 12

along Madison.  Many of them going over to Salt 13

Creek.  There are a lot of kids with their 14

tennis rackets, with their swimming gear, using 15

that intersection and that road to cross on and 16

it would be at peak hours because they are going 17

to swim meets and early tennis lessons so they 18

are out there in the morning as well as in the 19

late afternoon.  09:02:36PM 20

And as other people have said, my 21

final concern is just of the long-term 22
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implications of rezoning this site.  What if 1

Kensington is not successful?  What types of 2

businesses and traffic patterns does that open 3

the neighborhood to in the future?  Once the 4

genie is out of the bottle on residential 5

zoning, what is to stop some future more 6

intrusive commercial use?  7

Rezoning the parcel potentially 8

opens the door up to what I have called in 9

business a successive degradation.  That 09:03:02PM 10

situation in which each individual change you 11

make is a modest decline in quality versus the 12

situation that existed directly prior to it but 13

when the impact of multiple successive changes 14

is viewed cumulatively, the decline in quality 15

is large.  You look back and say one day how did 16

we get here?  Thank you. 17

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Thank you.18

MR. MOBERLY:  Hi.  My name is Gary 19

Moberly.  I am the spouse of Karen Moberly.  09:03:36PM 20

She's the smart, articulate one in the family.  21

I should mention -- I forgot to 22
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mention last time.  I'm on the zoning board of 1

appeals.  So a lot of you know that already.  2

I'm just speaking for myself.  I don't want to 3

speak for my neighbors, just for myself.  4

I'm opposed to this -- I'll just 5

come out and say it right now -- for all the 6

reasons the other folks have:  Traffic and 7

parking.  8

As you know, the purpose of the 9

grandfather business, this was grandfathered in 09:04:02PM 10

as you all know.  You know the code better than 11

I do.  And the purpose of grandfathering is to 12

slowly bring things back to the code.  And I 13

hear some folks say this was commercial.  It's 14

not commercial, it's residential.  It needs to 15

revert to residential.  Going from R-4 zoning to 16

O-2, that's a real big leap.  That's what 17

concerns us all here.  18

Just to briefly review a couple of 19

other projects recently in Hinsdale.  The 09:04:32PM 20

Hinsdale Meadows project.  That was residential.  21

I don't want to buy a $950,000 duplex over there 22
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Sec. 6-111:Bulk, Space, And Yard Requirements:  
 
The building height, lot, yard, setback, floor area ratio, and coverage requirements applicable in the 
office districts are set forth in the following table. Footnote references appear in subsection H of this 
section at the end of the table. 

                     O-1    O-2    O-3    

A. Maximum Height1,13:                

1.    Principal structures:                

      (a)    Feet       30    40    60    

      (b)    Stories       2.5    3    5    

      (whichever is less)                

2.    Accessory structures       15    15    15    

B. Minimum Lot Area And Dimensions2:                

1.    Total lot area (square feet)       8,500    25,000    20,000    

2.    Lot width (feet)5       60    100    80    

3.    Lot depth (feet)5       125    125    125    

C. Minimum Yards2,3,4,5,6,7,8,13:                

1.    Front and corner side (feet)       35    25    25    

2.    Side (feet)9       10    10    10    

3.    Rear (feet)9,10       25    20    20    

D. Minimum Setbacks4,5,6,7,8:                

1.    Setback from Ogden Avenue 
centerline9:    

            

      (a)    Structure height 0-30 feet 
   

   n/a    100    100    

      (b)    Structure height 31-46 
feet    

   n/a    200    200    

      (c)    Structure height more 
than 46 feet    

   n/a    n/a    300    
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2.    Setback from York Road centerline9:                

      (a)    Structure height 0-30 feet 
   

   n/a    75    75    

      (b)    Structure height 31-46 
feet    

   n/a    200    200    

      (c)    Structure height more 
than 46 feet    

   n/a    n/a    300    

3.    Setback from property owned by Cook 
County forest preserve district9:    

            

      (a)    Structure height 0-30 feet 
   

   n/a    n/a    100    

      (b)    Structure height 31-46 
feet    

   n/a    n/a    100    

      (c)    Structure height more 
than 46 feet    

   n/a    n/a    100    

4.    All other setbacks:                

      (a)    Front and corner side13       35    25    40    

      (b)    Side9       10    10    10    

      (c)    Rear9,10,13       25    20    40    

E. Maximum Floor Area Ratio13:       0.40    0.50    0.3511    

F. Maximum Total Lot Coverage13:       80 
percent    

80 
percent    

50 
percent12    

G. Maximum Total Building Coverage:       35 
percent    

n/a    n/a    

 

H.  Exceptions And Explanatory Notes: 

1. Height Exceptions: 
 
(a) Parking Structures: Parking structures in the O-3 district may extend to a height of thirty feet 
(30'). 
 
(b) Flagpoles: Flagpoles may extend to a height of ten feet (10') above the highest point of the roof 
of the principal structure to which they are attached. 
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(c) Personal Wireless Services: Personal wireless services antennas, with or without antenna 
support structures, and related electronic equipment and equipment structures, may extend to the 
following heights: 
 
(i) Personal wireless services antenna support structures of a tower design may extend to a height of 
seventy feet (70') in height in the O-3 district; 
 
(ii) Omnidirectional or whip antennas may extend to a height of fifteen feet (15') above the highest 
point of the roof of the building or structure to which they are attached in the O-2 and O-3 districts; 
 
(iii) Directional or panel antennas may not extend above the highest point of the building or structure 
to which they are attached or more than two feet (2') from the exterior of any wall or roof of the 
building or structure to which they are attached in the O-2 and O-3 districts; and 
 
(iv) Related electronic equipment and equipment structures shall not exceed applicable district 
height limitations. 

2. Nonconforming Lots: See section 10-105 of this code for lot requirements with respect to legal 
nonconforming lots of record. 

3. Yard Requirements For Uses Without Structures: On any lot occupied by a use without structures, 
the minimum front, side, and rear yard requirements that would otherwise be required for such lot 
shall be provided and maintained. 

4. Visibility Across Corners: Any other provision of this code to the contrary notwithstanding, nothing 
shall be erected, placed, planted, allowed to grow, or maintained on any corner lot in any office 
district in violation of the provisions of title 7, chapter 1, article D of the village code. 

5. Special Yard And Setback Requirements In Planned Developments: Special perimeter open space, 
setback, and spacing requirements for planned developments are set forth in subsections 11-
603E2(f) and E2(g) of this code. Such requirements shall not be waived under any circumstances. 

6. Special Setbacks For Signs: Special setbacks established for some signs by subsections 9-106F, H, 
I, and J of this code shall control over the yards and setbacks established in the table. 

7. Specified Structures And Uses In Required Yards: The following structures and uses, except as 
limited below, may be located in any required yard: 
 
(a) Statuary, arbors, trellises, and ornamental light standards having a height of eight feet (8') or 
less; and 
 
(b) Eaves and gutters projecting not more than three feet (3') from an exterior wall or, in the case of 
telecommunications equipment facility, four feet (4') from an exterior wall; and 
 
(c) Awnings, canopies, bay windows, and balconies projecting not more than three feet (3') from an 
exterior wall for a distance not more than one-third (

1
/3) of the length of such wall; provided, however, 

that in side yards in the O-1 district such projections shall not exceed two feet (2') for a distance not 
more than one-fourth (

1
/4) of the length of such wall and provided further, however, that all such 

projections shall come entirely within planes drawn from the main corners of the building at an 
interior angle of twenty two and one-half degrees (22

1
/2°) with the wall in question; and 

 
(d) Chimneys, flues, belt courses, leaders, sills, pilasters, lintels, ornamental features, cornices, and 
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the like projecting not more than two feet (2') from an exterior wall; and 
 
(e) Outside stairways projecting from an exterior wall not more than three feet (3') and having a 
height of four feet (4') or less; and 
(f) Flagpoles; and 
(g) Terraces; and 
(h) Recreational devices accessory to daycare services; and 
(i) Fitness trails; and 
(j) Fences, walls, and hedges, subject to the limitations of section 9-107 of this code; and 
(k) Driveways, subject to the limitations of subsection 9-104C of this code. 

8. Platted Building Lines: See subsection 12-101F of this code. 

9. Side And Rear Yard Regulations For Accessory Structures And Uses: Accessory parking areas and 
lots wherever located and other detached accessory structures and uses when located within the 
rear twenty percent (20%) of the lot shall not be required to maintain an interior side or rear yard or 
setback in excess of ten feet (10') if such interior side or rear yard is contiguous to any property 
zoned in any residential district or in excess of five feet (5') if no part of such interior side or rear yard 
is contiguous to any property zoned in any residential district; provided, however, that this regulation 
shall not apply to antennas and antenna support structures and provided further, however, that no 
accessory structure or use, or combination of such structures or uses, located within an otherwise 
required side or rear yard pursuant to this paragraph shall occupy more than forty percent (40%) of 
such required yard. 

10. Special Rear Yard And Setback Exception In O-2 District: No rear yard or rear setback shall be 
required on any lot zoned in the O-2 district when the rear lot line of such lot is contiguous to a 
railroad right of way and such lot is not contiguous to any lot zoned in any residential district. 

11. Floor Area Ratio Increase For Parking Structures In O-3 District: An increase of 0.25 to the 
maximum floor area ratio established in subsection E of this section shall be permitted in the O-3 
district, provided that such increase shall be solely for the purposes of developing parking spaces for 
passenger automobiles within an enclosed parking garage or structure. 

12. Special Lot Coverage Calculation Standards: Sidewalks, patios, decks, terraces, porches, gazebos, 
and other special architectural features designed for passive recreational use and intended for use 
by the general public shall not be considered for purposes of calculating maximum total lot coverage 
in the O-3 district. 

13. Exceptions For Telecommunications Equipment Facilities Approved As A Special Use In The O-2 
District: 
(a) Maximum Height: Forty seven feet (47'). 
(b) Minimum yards: 
(i) Front and corner side: Ten feet (10'). 
(ii) Rear: Ten feet (10'). 
Note: Accessory parking areas may be located in rear or interior side (but not corner side) yards up 
to the lot line. 
(c) Minimum setbacks: 
(i) Front and corner side: Ten feet (10'). 
(ii) Rear: Ten feet (10'). 
(d) Maximum floor area ratio: 1.1. 
(e) Maximum total lot coverage: Eighty five percent (85%). (Ord. 97-4, § 4C, i, ii, 3-4-1997; Ord. 
2000-10, §§ 3-5, 5-2-2000) 

Attachment 5

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=10&find=9-107
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=10&find=9-104
http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=10&find=12-101


Attachment 6



1 of 9 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

1

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
                  ) SS:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

     BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
            PLAN COMMISSION

In the Matter of:                            )
                                             )
Case A-24-2018 - Village of Hinsdale -       )
Zoning Code Text Amendment to                )
Section 6-111(H) Exceptions and Explanatory  )
Notes for the O-2 Limited Office District.   )   

              REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and 

testimony taken at the public hearing of the 

above-entitled matter before the Hinsdale Plan 

Commission at 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, 

Illinois, on the 11th day of July, 2018, at the 

hour of 8:00 p.m.

     BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

         MR. STEPHEN CASHMAN, Chairman;

         MS. DEBRA BRASELTON, Member; 

MS. JULIE CRNOVICH, Member;

         MR. GERALD JABLONSKI, Member; 

MR. JIM KRILLENBERGER, Member;

         MR. SCOTT PETERSON, Member.  
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ALSO PRESENT:1
         MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner and2
             Applicant.

_______________________________________________3

4

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Our next public5
hearing is Case A-24-2018.  It's from the6
Village of Hinsdale.  This is a Zoning Code Text7
Amendment to Section 6-111(H) Exceptions and8
Explanatory Notes for the O-2 Limited Office9
District.07:59:19PM 10

     Chan, I imagine you are the11
applicant?12

MR. YU:  Yes, sir.13
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  You want to tell us14

where you live and what your name is.15
     (Mr. Yu sworn.)16

MR. YU:  My home address or work17
address?18

MS. BRASELTON:  Work is good.19
MR. YU:  19 East Chicago Avenue,07:59:44PM 20

Village Hall.  That's where I spend most of my21
day.22

3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Chan, give us a1
history of where --  And I read the package and2
I understand this came because of the Kensington3
project.  But it seems like this came from the4
trustees because there wasn't really any5
discussion related to this at our level.6

MR. YU:  Correct.  So during the public7
comment period, the Board of Trustees meeting,8
and I think there were a couple of neighborhood9
meetings as well with maybe a couple of the08:00:16PM 10
trustees, a few neighbors were really concerned11
about the text amendment, particularly the O-212
District abutting residential.  Not so much13
Kensington School, but the future of whether or14
not the school would stay here forever.15

And understanding that Kensington16
School was really built below the what is17
maximum allowed for the site, you know, a lot of18
the neighbors were concerned that maybe a new19
landowner would demolish the building and08:00:53PM 20
construct to the max on the site.21

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Right.22

4

MR. YU:  And to the max, you know, the1
residents did show some concern.  So this really2
was spearheaded by some of the Board of Trustees3
members to say we will look at the Zoning Code4
to see if we can provide some relief in the5
footnotes of the bulk regs in the O-2 District.6

And so really these are some of7
the footnotes.  Officially they are called the8
"Exceptions and Explanatory Notes to the height,9
bulk, yard and coverage requirements for O-208:01:29PM 10
lots."  And some examples, minimum required lot11
coverage and setback requirements are increased12
30 percent than current.13

So if this text amendment moves14
forward, the front yard setback would go from15
25 feet to 32.5 feet.  So a new potential16
building would be further away from the front17
street.  The side yard setback goes from 10 to18
13 feet so the sides of it will be further away.19
The rear setback, from 20 to 26 feet.  And the08:02:01PM 20
FAR is reduced.  Lot coverage is also reduced.21

So really the maximum building and22

5

site plan that a potential applicant can ask to1
construct would be much smaller adjacent to a2
residential lot.3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  My question is when4
I read this is, if I look at this and I'm5
thinking just about Kensington, that's one6
thing.  But one thing that I think is completely7
missing in this is an analysis of every other8
O-2 property in the Village and how many, each9
one, what the analysis would be, what they08:02:38PM 10
currently are.  Because without that, this feels11
like spot zoning to me.12

MR. YU:  Right.13
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Just because the14

people living around that location made a fuss,15
I just don't think I would have the information16
to actually vote on this because how many17
O-2 lots are there.  How many are there that18
abut and have --19

MR. JABLONSKI:  O-2 lots adjoining 3 or08:02:59PM 20
more.21

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I know but how many.22
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MR. JABLONSKI:  That was going to be my1
point exactly.  Without a more macroanalysis, I2
think it's impossible.3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Yes.  What if you4
are going to do something that is going to hurt5
an O-2 use?6

Deb had a good case, what about7
commercial properties.8

MS. BRASELTON:  What about B-3s that9
abut residential areas?  Particularly the Land08:03:20PM 10
Rover development that was recently approved11
that, you know, there were tons of neighbors who12
are, I would submit, much more dramatically13
affected by a B-3.  So this feels to me like a14
special privilege that I can't vote in favor of.15

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Just for that lot.16
And it's hard to say.  Maybe there is one of17
these, maybe there are ten of these.18

MS. BRASELTON:  Maybe there are.19
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I think as a08:03:42PM 20

minimum, we would need to see an analysis of21
every single location graphically in some kind22

7

of tablet or form to see.1
MR. JABLONSKI:  That would be B-3.2
MS. CRNOVICH:  I would like to see3

office 1 added, O-1.4
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  To be honest, to be5

fair to businesses, I would want those people6
notified that this is being considered, because7
think of all the property owners.8

MR. JABLONSKI:  The property owners.9
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Property owners,08:04:06PM 10

think of how many there could be.  We don't even11
know.  This could be impacting these people and12
suddenly the value of their property has been13
diminished.  Because if they knock down an old14
building, say a 1950s building or something, and15
they knock it down.  They think they know what16
they can build.  And now it's restricted, and17
they didn't hear about this meeting.  It's a18
weird situation.  I just think it has more --  I19
really don't know what the ramifications are.  I08:04:27PM 20
just don't know how we could vote in good21
conscience and approve it.  That's just my22

8

personal opinions.1
MS. CRNOVICH:  Some of these other2

areas in O-2 have been hotspots before.  Like3
Chestnut, that office building years ago the4
neighbors weren't notified about things.5

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Is that where the6
Du Page Medical is?7

MS. CRNOVICH:  No.  This spot is8
further west.9

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Oh, yes.08:04:50PM 10
MS. CRNOVICH:  And I think that is11

where we got the text amendment that any12
residential neighbors had to be notified about13
any exterior appearance.14

MS. BRASELTON:  You are right.15
MS. CRNOVICH:  So it's also an issue16

for other, you know, residential neighborhoods.17
And again, I urge you to look at O-1.18

And then I had a question --19
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  What about --08:05:15PM 20
MS. CRNOVICH:  O-3, though, that's21

mainly, if you look at the definition, O-3 is a22

9

little bit different.  I think that's more,1
Accommodate the needs of business and2
professional offices and related businesses used3
as required, a somewhat wider range of office4
space with a somewhat higher intensity of5
pedestrian and traffic movement.6

So I think that's more, I don't7
think that's --  There is too many --8

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  In town?9
MS. CRNOVICH:  No.  O-1 is more like in08:05:52PM 10

town.  O-3 --  Do we have the big zoning map?11
MR. KRILLENBERGER:  There is one in the12

back of Chan's application.  O-3 is mostly the13
Spinning Wheel --14

MS. CRNOVICH:  You are talking about15
the big board.  But you know what I'm talking16
about, I think O-3 is more business.17

MR. YU:  Right.  No.  Yes, I mean I18
think staff, the Village, understands that there19
is probably other zoning districts they could08:06:18PM 20
also take another look at.  However, I think21
this is really driven by the Board to focus on22
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the O-2 in particular only because of that1
particular case.2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I just think3
that's --  I don't think we should look at it4
for one particular case.  I mean personally, I5
think our Code --  I just think who knows what6
the ramifications there are.  It could be great.7
Conceptually it sounds like good for the8
neighborhood, but I think we have to weigh9
everyone's --08:06:46PM 10

MS. CRNOVICH:  I think it could be11
tightened up, too.12

MR. JABLONSKI:  One concern I have the13
way it's written makes it really like it's14
targeted zoning.  We request an analysis, it15
says, for O-2 zoned lots, parenthesis, over16
1 acre.17

MS. CRNOVICH:  Is that combined lots or18
just one lot?19

MR. JABLONSKI:  Is it only ones over08:07:04PM 20
1 acre?21

MS. CRNOVICH:  That's what I was22

11

confused with.  Does the lot have to be 1 acre1
or more than --2

MR. JABLONSKI:  When we get that3
specific, I'm really worried about that, the4
issue you bring up.5

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Right.  That's just6
unique to that one.  So I guess that would be my7
only comments.  I know you are going to be busy8
and not going to be getting any sleep in a9
month.  But, you know, just some more homework08:07:27PM 10
by staff to --  So at least we could evaluate11
this thing.12

MR. YU:  Right.13
MS. BRASELTON:  It's not that it's not14

well-meaning.  I think it is --15
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  The intention is.16
MS. BRASELTON:  But I think it needs to17

be looked at for the bigger perspective of other18
properties, other residents, other rights.19

MR. JABLONSKI:  We are not here to08:07:45PM 20
destroy property.21

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Right.  If I owned22

12

an O-2 piece, I would want to be sitting here.1
MR. JABLONSKI:  It needs to be heard.2
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  That would be3

terrible.  You go to sell it.  And you think you4
know what it is, and then there has been a text5
amendment to change what you would do.6

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Was the intention,7
Chan, by saying the greater than 1 acre to make8
it -- and we have kind of done this with the9
County Line and 55th property designating by08:08:08PM 10
acreage -- to kind of identify this particular11
property.  And I am with you, I don't like that.12

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  That's why I think13
that spreadsheet, we would want to see how many14
acres we are talking about for every O-2 parcel.15

MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Yes.  I mean there16
is clearly --17

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  So we can see which18
fall or which don't.  Maybe the 1 acre makes it19
so it makes more sense.08:08:25PM 20

MS. CRNOVICH:  And then, too, you might21
want to add, institutional, IB, because you22

13

have -- whatchamacallit -- on Ogden.  It's Basic1
Life.  So there is all these different ways.2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  All right.3
MS. CRNOVICH:  And I have one more4

comment.  It says for, let's see, Lots over5
1 acre adjoining 3 or more single-family lots.6
I think I would prefer if the wording was7
abutting, which is in definitions.  And that8
means -- I know you know, Chan -- but it could9
be property across the street.  It doesn't have08:09:09PM 10
to be right next door.11

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  But would you want12
it to attach something across the street?13

MS. CRNOVICH:  Usually in our Code14
abutting is used.15

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Which would be16
touching.17

MS. BRASELTON:  Share the property18
line.19

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  No right-of-way08:09:23PM 20
between.21

MS. CRNOVICH:  No right-of-way.22
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Because if you look at --1
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  There are so many2

possible things.3
MS. CRNOVICH:  It's abut, touch, to lie4

immediately next to, to share a common wall or5
lot line, or to be separated by only a street,6
alley, or drainage course.7

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  This could be8
properties across the street?9

MS. CRNOVICH:  And that's how our Code08:09:41PM 10
is now, though.  Anything like this abuts --11

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  That's why I'm just12
wondering what's wrong with our O-2 right now.13
This, obviously, was designed with a purpose to14
be a transitional district.  So why is it not15
expected?16

Because even if I was the17
Kensington owner, I mean, hopefully, they will18
be successful; but by this being passed reduces19
the value of that property.08:10:04PM 20

MR. JABLONSKI:  And even if you look at21
the first suggestion, limit it from 40 to 25.  A22

15

house is going to be 30 feet.1
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I know, it's not2

even as small as a house.3
MR. JABLONSKI:  You use the roof line.4

So a house can be 40 feet tall.5
MS. CRNOVICH:  Right.6
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Right.7
MR. JABLONSKI:  So you are adversely8

selecting offices.9
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Right.  And you08:10:20PM 10

actually would be hard-pressed to build a11
building, a commercial building, at 25 feet.  A12
good floor-to-floor height of a commercial13
building is 15 feet so we already, if you had14
one --15

MR. JABLONSKI:  Your neighbor can abut.16
MS. CRNOVICH:  I think if you look at17

the O-2, if you look at the purposes, I think18
you start with O-1 being, you know, the least19
amount of use next to a residential08:10:49PM 20
neighborhood, then you have O-2, and then O-3.21
So all of a sudden O-2 has stricter guidelines22

16

than O-1.  That just doesn't make sense to me1
for some things.2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  I mean I think it's3
interesting, too, there is no one here for the4
neighbors around Kensington.5

MR. JABLONSKI:  Well, they thought the6
Board --7

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Unless you think8
you've got more discussion, I kind of would like9
to continue this.08:11:16PM 10

MR. JABLONSKI:  I agree.11
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  And, Chan, you can12

talk with Robb and get some more information.13
And then what I just don't know is I mean it14
seems like a change, this is a big change to a15
district, and how is no one notified.  It seems16
wrong to me.17

MR. JABLONSKI:  Well, it might turn out18
that there is more than one O-2 with more than19
1 acre.08:11:44PM 20

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Well, maybe.21
MR. JABLONSKI:  And then it's really a22

17

problem, and you are exposing yourself to a1
lawsuit.2

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Yes.3
MS. CRNOVICH:  Then it is spot zoning.4
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Yes.  Right.5

Because I thought when we -- and this goes back6
to Hinsdale Meadows -- that question came up7
about that property.8

MS. CRNOVICH:  Yes.  I brought that up.9
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  There was something08:11:58PM 10

specific.  And there was more than one location.11
It was basically that location and then over by12
Basic Life Institute and Basic Life Principles,13
they both fell under that.14

MS. CRNOVICH:  And that right there,15
the Institute of Basic Life, we have the O-2 and16
the IP so --17

MS. BRASELTON:  Yes.  I think it bears18
repeating that the reason we pass text19
amendments should be to protect residents, all08:12:19PM 20
residents, and not just a subset.21

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Well, I know, and22
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you made a good point.  All the challenges with1
Land Rover.  And there you had one, two, three,2
four houses immediately adjacent to it.3

MS. BRASELTON:  Right.4
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  And there was no5

text amendment.6
MS. BRASELTON:  Well, there was another7

property right next door.8
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Right.  If Land9

Rover knocked that building down, they could08:12:43PM 10
build a much bigger building.11

MS. BRASELTON:  Right.  Exactly.  So12
looking around corners and thinking about it13
before we vote on it.14

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Sorry, Chan.15
MR. YU:  Oh, no.16
MS. BRASELTON:  So we need a motion to17

continue it to our September meeting?18
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Could I have a19

motion to continue.08:12:59PM 20
MS. BRASELTON:  To September, right?21

We don't meet in August.22

19

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  To September,1
correct.2

MS. BRASELTON:  So moved.3
MR. JABLONSKI:  Second.4
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Julie?5
MS. CRNOVICH:  Aye.6
CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Aye.7
MR. JABLONSKI:  Aye.8
MR. PETERSON:  Aye.9
MS. BRASELTON:  Aye.08:13:11PM 10
MR. KRILLENBERGER:  Aye.11

                  * * *12
(Which were all the proceedings had13

               in the above-entitled cause.)14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

20
STATE OF ILLINOIS )1
                  )  ss.
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )2

3

         I, JANICE H. HEINEMANN, CSR, RDR, CRR,4
do hereby certify that I am a court reporter5
doing business in the State of Illinois, that I6
reported in shorthand the testimony given at the7
hearing of said cause, and that the foregoing is8
a true and correct transcript of my shorthand9
notes so taken as aforesaid.10

11
12

         ______________________________________13
              Janice H. Heinemann CSR, RDR, CRR14
              License No 084-001391

15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   October 10, 2018 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  Schedule a Public Hearing for Text Amendment to Prohibit Internally Illuminated 

Signage in the B-2 Central Business District 
Request by the Village of Hinsdale - Case A-45-2018 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 
 
Certain Historic Preservation Commission and certain Village Trustees are proposing this text 
amendment request to preserve, protect and promote the Village’s historic downtown character by 
prohibiting internally illuminated signage in the B-2 Central Business District. On October 2, 2018, the 
Board of Trustees referred the application to the Plan Commission for review and recommendation.  
 
The Zoning Code Section 9-106(J)(7)(b) currently permits a sign applicant to request for internally 
illuminated signage in the B-2 Central Business District. This text amendment request, shown below in 
red underlined text, would prohibit internally illuminated signage in the B-2 District:   

“Other signs: Signs permitted pursuant to this subsection J may be illuminated only by 
indirect or, for signs other than in the B-2 district, by internal white light not exceeding 
fifty (50) foot-candles when measured with a standard light meter held perpendicular to 
the sign face at a distance equal to the narrowest dimension of such sign face; provided, 
however, that projecting signs shall not be illuminated. Signs in the B-2 district may not be 
internally illuminated.” 

 

Process 
 
Within forty five (45) days following the conclusion of the public hearing, the PC shall transmit to the 
Village Board its recommendation in the form specified by subsection 11-103(H). The failure of the PC to 
act within forty five (45) days following the conclusion of such hearing, or such further time to which the 
applicant may agree, shall be deemed a recommendation for the approval of the proposed amendment 
as submitted. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Text Amendment Applications and draft ordinance 
Attachment 2 -  Zoning Map and B-2 Central Business District 
Attachment 3 -  Map of Downtown National Register Historic District 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=10&find=11-103
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

DEPARTMENT 

 

 

PLAN COMMISSION APPLICATION  
  

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City/Zip: _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________ 

 

Applicant 
Name: ___________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City/Zip: _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________ 

 

Owner 

Others, if any, involved in the project (i.e. Architect, Attorney, Engineer) 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City/Zip: _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________ 

 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City/Zip: _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________ 

 

Disclosure of Village Personnel:  (List the name, address and Village position of any officer or employee 
of the Village with an interest in the owner of record, the Applicant or the property that is the subject of this 
application, and the nature and extent of that interest) 
 
1) ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2) ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3) ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
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II.  SITE INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Address of subject property: _____________________________________________________ 
 
Property identification number (P.I.N. or tax number): ____ - ____ - ______ - _______  
 
Brief description of proposed project: ________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
General description or characteristics of the site: ________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Existing zoning and land use: _________________ 
 
Surrounding zoning and existing land uses: 
 
North: _______________________________     South: ______________________________ 
 
East: ________________________________     West: _______________________________ 
 
Proposed zoning and land use: _____________________________ 
 
Existing square footage of property: _____________________ square feet 
 
Existing square footage of all buildings on the property: _____________ square feet Please mark the approval(s) you are seeking and attach all applicable applications and 
standards for each approval requested: 
   
  Site Plan Approval 11-604 

 
 Design Review Permit 11-605E 
 
 Exterior Appearance 11-606E  
 
 Special Use Permit 11-602E 

Special Use Requested: _______________ 
___________________________________ 

     ________________________________________ 

 Map and Text Amendments 11-601E 
Amendment Requested: ______________ 
__________________________________ 

      ______________________________________ 
 
 Planned Development 11-603E 
 
 Development in the B-2 Central Business 

District Questionnaire 
 
 Major Adjustment to Final Plan Development 
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TABLE OF COMPLIANCE 

Address of subject property: ________________________________________________________ 
 
The following table is based on the __________ Zoning District.   
 

 Minimum Code 
Requirements 

Proposed/Existing  
Development 

   

Minimum Lot Area (s.f.)   

Minimum Lot Depth   

Minimum Lot Width   

Building Height   

   Number of Stories   

Front Yard Setback   

Corner Side Yard Setback   

Interior Side Yard Setback   

Rear Yard Setback    

Maximum Floor Area Ratio 
(F.A.R.)* 

  

Maximum Total Building 
Coverage* 

  

Maximum Total Lot Coverage*   

Parking Requirements 
 
 
 

  

Parking front yard setback   

Parking corner side yard 
setback 

  

Parking interior side yard 
setback 

  

Parking rear yard setback   

Loading Requirements   

Accessory Structure 
Information 

  

* Must provide actual square footage number and percentage. 
 
 
Where any lack of compliance is shown, state the reason and explain the Village’s authority, if any, to approve the 
application despite such lack of compliance: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
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Must be accompanied by completed Plan Commission Application 
 

Is this a:   Map Amendment  Text Amendment 
 
Address of the subject property  
 
Description of the proposed request:  
 
REVIEW CRITERIA 
  
Section 11-601 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code regulates Amendments.  The amendment process 
established is intended to provide a means for making changes in the text of the Zoning Code and in 
the zoning map that have more or less general significance or application.  It is not intended to relieve 
particular hardships nor to confer special privileges or rights.  Rather, it is intended as a tool to adjust 
the provisions of the Zoning Code and the zoning map in light of changing, newly discovered, or 
newly important conditions, situations, or knowledge.  The wisdom of amending the text of the Zoning 
Code is a matter committed to the sound legislative discretion of the Board of Trustees and is not 
dictated by any set standard.  However, in determining whether a proposed amendment should be 
granted or denied the Board of Trustees should be guided by the principle that its power to amend 
this Code is not an arbitrary one but one that may be exercised only when the public good demands 
or requires the amendment to be made.  In considering whether that principle is satisfied in any 
particular case, the Board of Trustees should weigh, among other factors, the below criteria. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1. The consistency of the proposed amendment with the purpose of this Code.   

 
  
 

  
2. The existing uses and zoning classifications for properties in the vicinity of the subject property.   

  

 
3. The trend of development in the vicinity of the subject property, including changes, if any, such 

trend since the subject property was placed in its present zoning classification.   
 
 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  
DEPARTMENT 
ZONING CODE TEXT AND MAP  
AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
 

Below are the 14 standards for amendments that will be the criteria used by the Plan Commission 
and Board of Trustees in determining the merits of this application.  Please respond to each 
standard as it relates to the application.  Please use an additional sheet of paper to respond to 
questions if needed.  If the standard is not applicable, please mark N/A. 
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4. The extent, if any, to which the value of the subject property is diminished by the existing zoning 
classification applicable to it.   

 
 
 
 
5. The extent to which any such diminution in value is offset by an increase in the public health, 

safety, and welfare.    
 
 
 
 
6. The extent, if any, to which the use and enjoyment of adjacent properties would be affected by 

the proposed amendment.  
 

 

7. The extent, if any, to which the value of adjacent properties would be affected by the proposed 
amendment.  

 
 
 
8. The extent, if any, to which the future orderly development of adjacent properties would be 

affected by the proposed amendment.  
 
 
 
 
9. The suitability of the subject property for uses permitted or permissible under its present zoning 

classification.   
 
 
 
 
10. The availability of adequate ingress to and egress from the subject property and the extent to 

which traffic conditions in the immediate vicinity of the subject property would be affected by the 
proposed amendment.  

 
 
 
 
11. The availability of adequate utilities and essential public services to the subject property to 

accommodate the uses permitted or permissible under the present zoning classification. 
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12. The length of time, if any, that the subject property has been vacant, considered in the context of 
the pace of development in the vicinity of the subject property.   

 
 
 
 
 
13. The community need for the proposed amendment and for the uses and development it would 

allow.   
 
 
 
 
14. The reasons, where relevant, why the subject property should be established as part of an 

overlay district and the positive and negative effects such establishment could be expected to 
have on persons residing in the area.   
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DRAFT – 09-26-18 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  __________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 9-106 (SIGNS) OF THE HINSDALE ZONING 

CODE RELATIVE TO INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED SIGNS IN THE B2 CENTRAL 
BUSINESS DISTRICT 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Hinsdale (the “Village”) has received an application 

(the “Application”) from the Village of Hinsdale (the “Applicant”) pursuant to Section 11-
601 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code (“Zoning Code”) for an amendment to the text of 
subsection 9-106.J of the Zoning Code relative to prohibiting internally illuminated signs 
in the B2 Central Business Zoning District (the “Proposed Text Amendment”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has given preliminary consideration to the 

Application pursuant to Section 11-601(D)(2) of the Hinsdale Zoning Code, and has 
referred the Application to the Plan Commission of the Village for consideration and a 
hearing. The Application has otherwise been processed in accordance with the 
Hinsdale Zoning Code, as amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, on ___________, 2018, the Plan Commission held a public hearing 

on the Application pursuant to notice thereof properly published in The Hinsdalean, and, 
after considering all of the testimony and evidence presented at the public hearing, 
recommended approval of the Application by a vote of __ (_) in favor, ____ (_) against 
and __ (_) absent, as set forth in the Plan Commission’s Findings and Recommendation 
for Plan Commission Case No. ____________-2018 (“Findings and Recommendation”), 
a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Village is an Illinois non-home rule municipality, having all of the 

powers and authority granted to such municipalities pursuant to law, including authority 
to amend the existing Zoning Code regulations relative to signs within the business and 
other districts of the Village; and 

 
WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village have duly 

considered the Findings and Recommendation of the Plan Commission, the factors set 
forth in Section 11-601(E) of the Hinsdale Zoning Code and all of the facts and 
circumstances affecting the Application, and have determined that the approval of the 
Proposed Text Amendment, as set forth below, is in the best interests of the Village and 
is demanded by and required for the public good. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees 

of the Village of Hinsdale, Cook and DuPage Counties, Illinois, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1:  Each whereas paragraph set forth above is incorporated by 
reference into this Section 1. 
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SECTION 2:  The President and Board of Trustees, after considering the 
Findings and Recommendation of the Plan Commission, and other matters properly 
before it, adopts and incorporates the Findings and Recommendation of the Plan 
Commission as the findings of this President and the Board of Trustees, as completely 
as if fully recited herein at length.  The President and Board of Trustees further find that 
the Proposed Text Amendment set forth below is in the best interests of the Village and 
is demanded by and required for the public good. 

 
SECTION 3: Subsection J.7.b. (Illumination/Other Signs) of Section 9-106 

(Signs) of Article IX (District Regulations of General Applicability) of the Hinsdale Zoning 
Code is amended to read in its entirety as follows:  

7. Illumination: 

(a) Signs without permits: Signs permitted pursuant to subsection F of this section shall 
be illuminated only as permitted in that subsection. 

(b) Other signs: Signs permitted pursuant to this subsection J may be illuminated only 
by indirect or, for signs other than in the B-2 district, by internal white light not exceeding 
fifty (50) foot-candles when measured with a standard light meter held perpendicular to 
the sign face at a distance equal to the narrowest dimension of such sign face; 
provided, however, that projecting signs shall not be illuminated. Signs in the B-2 district 
may not be internally illuminated. 

SECTION 4: Each section, paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is 

separable, and if any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be 

held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the unconstitutionality or invalidity of 

such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect the remainder of this 

Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other than that part affected by such decision.  All 

ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

 
SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner provided by law. 
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PASSED this _____ day of _______________ 2018. 
 
AYES:              
 
NAYS:              
 
ABSENT:              
 

APPROVED by me this _______ day of _________________, 2018, and attested to by 

the Village Clerk this same day. 
 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk 
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